
CITY OF NORTH OAKS

Regular City Council Meeting
Thursday, December 14, 2023

7:00 PM, Community Meeting Room, 100 Village Center Drive
MEETING AGENDA

Remote Access  - City Council members will participate in person in Council Chambers (Community Room,
100 Village Center Drive, Suite 150, North Oaks, MN) during the meeting.  Members of the public are
welcome to attend.  Any person wishing to monitor the meeting electronically from a remote location
may do so by calling the following Zoom meeting videoconference number: 1-312-626-6799, Webinar
ID: 862 1439 0127 or by joining the meeting via the following link: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86214390127.  

1.  Call to Order

2.  Roll Call

3.  Pledge of Allegiance

4.  Citizen Comments  - Members of the public are invited to make comments to the Council during the
public comments section. Up to four minutes shall be allowed for each speaker. No action will be taken
by the Council on items raised during the public comment period unless the item appears as an agenda
item for action.

5.  Approval of Agenda

6.  Consent Agenda  - These are items that are considered routine and can be acted upon with one vote.
6a.  Approval of Licenses
Arborists: Birch Tree Care; Bratt Tree Co; FA Bartlett Tree Experts; New Horizons Tree & Landscaping; NWI

Tree Service & Landscaping
Mechanical: Air Quality Services, Le's Heating and Air Inc.

6b.  Approval of City Financials

Checks: 15134 - 15166   EFT: 775E - 787E
Dec. 2023 Budget vs Actual Spreadsheets.pdf

December 2023 Charts and Graphs.pdf

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2341381/Dec._2023_Budget_vs_Actual_Spreadsheets.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2341382/December_2023_Charts_and_Graphs.pdf


City Council December 14, 2023

2

December 2023 Check Register.pdf

6c.  Approve City Council Meeting Minutes of 10.12.23 and Special City Council meeting of 11.30.2023
11.09.2023 City Council.pdf

11.30.2023 Special City Council Minutes.pdf

7.  Petitions, Requests & Communications  - Deputy Matt Lassegard Report
7a.Deputy Lassegard Monthly Report 

December 2023 CouncilMeeting.pdf

8.  Unfinished Business
8a.  Update and discussion and possible action on CLCA water connection with Shoreview

CLCA memo to CityNO Council cost share 6dec2023.pdf

9.  New Business
9a.  Discussion and possible action on Earned Sick and Safe Time Leave Policy and Personnel Policy updates

ESST_Memo_to_Council.pdf

9b.  Truth in Taxation Hearing 2024 Budget/Levy followed by discussion and possible action on Resolution setting
2024 Budget/Levy
2024 Budget Truth in Taxation Spreadsheets.pdf

Copy of Property tax levy spreadsheet updated 12-11-23.pdf

XXXX._Approving_Final_2023_24_Tax_Levy.pdf

10.  Council Member Reports

11.  City Administrator Reports

12.  City Attorney Reports

13.  Miscellaneous
13a.  MMCD 2023 - Annual Mosquito Control Report

Mosquito Control District 2023 summary.pdf

14.  Adjournment  - The next meeting of the City Council is

2

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2341416/December_2023_Check_Register.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2334634/11.09.2023_City_Council.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2334635/11.30.2023_Special_City_Council_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2330928/December_2023_CouncilMeeting.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2328137/CLCA_memo_to_CityNO_Council_cost_share_6dec2023.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2328059/ESST_Memo_to_Council.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2341385/2024_Budget_Truth_in_Taxation_Spreadsheets.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2334602/Copy_of_Property_tax_levy_spreadsheet_updated_12-11-23.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2334603/XXXX._Approving_Final_2023_24_Tax_Levy.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/2295915/Mosquito_Control_District_2023_summary.pdf


3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



North Oaks City Council 
Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 
November 9, 2023 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
Mayor Wolter called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
2. ROLL CALL 
Present: Mayor Krista Wolter. Council Members Mark Azman, John Shuman, Sara Shah, Tom 
Watson. 
Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Bridget Nason, Planner Kendra Lindahl. 
Others Present: Videographer Kenny Ronnan. 
A quorum was declared present.  
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor Wolter led the Council in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
4. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
No one appeared to address the City Council during Citizen Comments. 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Administrator Kress requested items 8c and 8d be removed from the agenda. 
 
MOTION by Shuman, seconded by Shah, to approve the Agenda as amended.  
 
Member Watson noted under 8d, the Sheriff’s contract will be reviewed and he has prepared a 
PowerPoint presentation. Mayor Wolter stated since the contract has just been received this 
evening, the discussion will be held at the December meeting. Member Shah stated everyone is 
aware the contract is ending December 31, 2024 and the Council agenda states Review of 2024 
budget. She would agree to an update today. Mayor Wolter stated the PowerPoint presentation 
will be reviewed as an update.  
 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 
 
6. CONSENT AGENDA 

a. Approval of Licenses. 
b. Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes of October 12, 2023. 
c. Approve 2024 Recycling Charge – Resolution 1498. 
d. Approve City Financials. 
e. Amendment to the Northeast Youth & Family Services Conduit Revenue Note. 
f. Approval of Resolution 1500 Requesting 2024 Score Grant Funds. 

 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Azman, to approve the Consent Agenda as presented. 
Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote. 
 

18



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  November 9, 2023 

P a g e  | 2 

7. PETITIONS, REQUESTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
a. Deputy Matt Lassegard Report 
Deputy Lassegard gave a summary of the written report noting there were 179 calls for service. 
He noted there was a theft where movers allegedly stole money and jewelry. There were four 
trespassers with one being cited and three being warned. The two drunk driving arrests caused 
accidents with no injuries. Deputy Lassegard encouraged people to close their garage doors. The 
most recent fraud cases are targeting seniors during open enrollment for Medicare. He gave 
kudos to the manager of the UPS Store in the strip mall who noticed an elderly customer who 
was flustered and attempting to mail something. She confronted him and called the Sheriff. It 
was found he was attempting to mail $12,000. The mailing was stopped and the family of the 
individual was contacted to make sure someone was watching over him. There was another 
Bitcoin fraud in Shoreview. Mayor Wolter noted another scam is when people are using their 
computer and a notice comes up asking for banking information.  
 
Member Watson stated he has noticed on the daily report an increase on the number of calls for 
house alarms. Administrator Kress stated a resident was contacted after a number of calls and it 
was corrected. Member Azman asked about the fine for repeated calls. Member Watson stated 
the fines increase after a number of calls. Administrator Kress stated the first fine is $150 and 
subsequent fines are $175 per call. 
 
Deputy Lassegard announced there will be a Block Captain informational meeting on January 
16, 2024 at 6:30 p.m. at 1425 Paul Kirkwold Drive in Arden Hills. Deputy Lassegard also 
announced he has written articles for the North Oaks News. 
 
Member Shuman suggested per capita information on crime be calculated and communicated, 
which can be discussed in the future. Deputy Lassegard stated he will include in his yearly 
review. Member Shah requested mail package theft and car theft information also be included. 
  
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
a. Review of 2024 budget. 
Member Watson prepared a PowerPoint summary of the Sheriff’s contract. The agreement 
expires December 31, 2024 and the following cities are parties to the agreement: Arden Hills, 
Falcon Heights, Little Canada, North Oaks, Shoreview, Vadnais Heights and Township of White 
Bear. Member Watson reviewed the North Oaks objectives and the 2020 and 2022 Sheriff’s 
annual report, noting medical calls are 28% (Waverly Gardens). He stated a fee is paid by 
Waverly Gardens rather than taxes because they are a non-profit. Member Azman stated they do 
pay NOHOA dues the equivalent of 30 units. Member Watson continued the presentation, noting 
assist fire was 6%, alarm calls 10%, traffic 18%. Member Watson displayed a chart showing 
calls by class – crimes against persons, property, traffic related calls, quality of life calls, and 
other/misc. calls for service between 2016 and 2022. North Oaks is running 1,500 calls with the 
total for all cities being 32,000 calls. The proposed 2024 budget for RCSO Services is increasing 
$103,140 (11%). The entire budget for North Oaks is increasing 9% so something else will need 
to be cut to absorb this increase. Member Watson stated there are 3.34 FTE allocated into the 
contract. There are 35 deputies in total that are part of the 7 city contract. North Oaks has a 
separate page for 1 FTE deputy. He had requested a community service officer work in North 
Oaks 8 hours a day/40 hours a week. It was noted that the decision was made to go with a deputy 

19



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  November 9, 2023 

P a g e  | 3 

rather than a community service officer at an increased cost of $156,000 so North Oaks is being 
charged twice. Member Watson reviewed the increases over the years along with the cost model. 
He suggested a sub-group take a serious look at the numbers. North Oaks obligation for the 3.34 
FTE patrol is $595,097 and the 1.0 FTE is $156,373. He would like to see information on who is 
representing the Sheriff’s office in North Oaks and who is included in the 4.34 FTEs. He 
reviewed with the City Administrator about having a separate contract for the 1.0 FTE North 
Oaks deputy and suggested there be a discussion with the Sheriff’s office regarding the 11% 
increase.  
 
Member Shuman asked when the leverage on the contract begins and Member Watson stated 
April 2024.  
 
Member Shah asked how he thinks the 11% increase is negotiable. Member Watson stated the 
contract should be distributed to the City Council. Member Shah stated she wants to make sure 
North Oaks is getting its monies worth. There is no alternative law enforcement agency. Member 
Watson stated the 2024 budget for North Oaks needs to be set in December 2023 for 2024. 
Mayor Wolter asked Staff if this could be negotiated before the end of the year. Administrator 
Kress stated the Sheriff’s office is doing us a favor by sending us the budget now.  
 
Mayor Wolter stated she thought this is why there was no work session to discuss it. 
Administrator Kress read excerpts from the contract, noting the Council will have until January 
31, 2024 to negotiate the 2024 budget.  
 
Member Watson explained why he feels North Oaks is being charged double. Member Watson 
will send to Member Azman the data he has received and it can be discussed further. Mayor 
Wolter asked Member Watson if he has ever received data from the Sheriff’s department and 
Member Watson stated he has not.  
 
Member Azman asked if the FTEs were decreased, would there be a lack of service. Member 
Shuman asked if the one additional FTE were dropped, would that work. Administrator Kress 
stated there are a couple of options – to get out of the contract entirely and they would still need 
to provide the service without the allocation of deputies. There would be no guarantee on the 
number of deputies provided. Currently, they are guaranteeing 4.34 FTE. Member Azman asked 
if there aren’t experts that determine, according to population, how many FTEs are needed. 
Administrator Kress stated every city is short so every city bought extra deputies for coverage 
when the contract was established. Member Azman asked if there was ever a service call with no 
deputy response. Administrator Kress stated not that he is aware of. Deputy Lassegard was hired 
for community presence and during his shift, he is in North Oaks but he can be called to other 
areas when needed. There are risks in trying to negotiate the contract.  
 
Member Watson stated there is a 9-month notice clause if North Oaks were not to renew the 
contract. Mayor Wolter suggested taking a hard look at this. She liked it when there was a 
community service officer on duty. The City Attorney stated she has been reviewing the contract 
and the City does have the ability to meet and confer by January 31, 2024. She read excerpts 
from the contract, noting if an agreement is not reached, the City will be billed for services.  

20



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  November 9, 2023 

P a g e  | 4 

Member Watson stated he is not interested in playing hardball.  He questioned whether the 
algorithm has been updated in recent years. He understands other cities may be looking for other 
providers. If one of the cities departs from the contract, North Oaks ends up with a larger bill. He 
would like to add an additional community service officer so North Oaks would have coverage 
16 hours a day.  
 
Member Shah agreed we need accountability.  She suggested the Council have a work session or 
two to review. Mayor Wolter suggested leaving the 2024 contract as it is. Member Watson stated 
50% of the services provided have nothing to do with traffic or crime. Administrator Kress will 
schedule some work sessions in the January – February timeframe. 
 
Administrator Kress reviewed the 2024 contract for Timesaver. He suggested cancelling the 
contract as most of the development is completed. He stated it is a pretty expensive contract. 
They are increasing the rates $1.50 an hour and $.50 per page for a 5.25% increase. He is not 
comfortable with that for minute taking. There may be something that comes up where it would 
be needed.  This could reduce the budget. Staff will continue to look for further ways to reduce 
the budget. He asked Council to give any input to him.  
 
Member Azman asked if less could be allocated for the Sheriff’s contract. This would send a 
message that further discussion is necessary. Administrator Kress stated the dollars could be 
moved to another line item within the General Fund.  
 
Administrator Kress summarized that TimeSaver would be removed. He would like to see any 
other tweaks from the Council by Monday. Member Azman asked if City Staff would be doing 
the minutes in the future. Administrator Kress stated the TimeSaver contract runs through 2023. 
TimeSaver was only being used for more robust meetings. Member Watson stated we would not 
be saving any money by getting rid of TimeSaver because the work will still need to be done at a 
different rate of pay. The minutes do not need to be really detailed. Member Watson asked when 
salaries will be reviewed and Administrator Kress stated that will be done in December.  
 
Mayor Wolter suggested the Sheriff’s contract be discussed at the meeting with the other cities. 
 
b.   Security Update 
Mayor Wolter stated she received a petition in regard to security items being explored by 
NOHOA, the City, North Oaks Company and the SAFE Committee. Member Shuman and the 
Security Task Force will look at the list of concerns submitted and continue to give information 
to the community. Member Shuman stated they will be publicly noticing the Task Force 
meetings. He suggested anyone with a question can feel free to call him. For neighborhood 
watch, the City needs to leverage the power of the homeowner’s association, the SAFE 
Committee, and the Ramsey County Sheriff’s office to identify where within the community 
there are cool spots where neighborhood watch captains can be added. The Emergency 
Notification System has been selected. He explained how the system works. The license plate 
recognition cameras questions have been passed onto the provider for responses. There needs to 
be a contract signed with Convergent Genotech before they will begin work. There are four spots 
suggested for the cameras and Rapp Farm has been asked to participate. He explained the 
process going forward with Convergent.  

21



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  November 9, 2023 

P a g e  | 5 

Member Watson asked about the petition and Mayor Wolter asked Administrator Kress to 
distribute the petition to the Council. Member Shuman stated the money for this contract is in the 
budget for these security initiatives. City Attorney Nason stated the Council can deal with this as 
they wish. Member Shuman stated there has been transparency regarding this entire process. 
Member Watson stated since the petition was sent to the City Council he takes it personally. 
 
c. Update on CLCA water project. 
 
d. Discussion and possible action on Ordinance Amending City Code Title XV, Chapter 

151, regarding solar energy systems. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS  
a. Discussion and possible action on deer management program. 
Administrator Kress stated staff has reached out to the USDA for a proposal. The proposal came 
back to $56,700 to include 40 scouting/bait stations and up to 20 visits to conduct white tail 
control activities. They are the only provider for deer management services and they are flexible 
as to whether to do trapping or sharp shooting. A do-not-exceed dollar amount can be set. The 
cost to do a flyover to view the deer population would be $320/hour plus possibly staff time. 
Flyover’s have been done every 5 years and more frequently some years.  
 
Member Azman asked what was in the budget and Administrator Kress stated $15,000 per year 
split between two years. Member Azman stated he would support the program. Member Shuman 
stated he likes the do-not-exceed limit, noting that nothing has been done since January 2021. 
Member Shah supports taking action and suggested reducing it to 10 visits with reporting on how 
many deer were taken each visit. Member Watson stated he would not be interested in spending 
money until an aerial count is done. Member Shah stated there needs to be good conditions to get 
a good aerial count, which happened two years in the past. Mayor Wolter suggested finding 
another option to see if other companies can be licensed in Minnesota to do the management. 
Administrator Kress stated bow hunting could be a possibility. Mayor Wolter also suggested 
asking residents to report where they are seeing deer. Administrator Kress commented on 
another deer management organization which he will further research.  
 
MOTION by Shah, seconded by Azman, to begin the deer management program starting 
at 10 visits and ask for a daily report on how many deer were taken and authorizing the 
Mayor and City Administrator to move forward signing the contract. Motion carried by 
roll call vote (Watson – opposed). 
 
Member Watson stated with the high cost he would approve with the aerial count being done 
first, consider it at the December meeting, and allow City Administrator to research the bow 
hunting option. He does not want them to go randomly throughout North Oaks looking for a 
deer. Administrator Kress stated Ben Walenski does not feel an aerial survey would be 
necessary. Administrator Kress suggested other methods be used to obtain a deer count rather 
than an aerial survey. It was noted that deer removal would not happen until January.  
 
MOTION by Watson to begin the deer management program after an aerial survey is 
conducted. Motion failed for lack of a second.  

22



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  November 9, 2023 

P a g e  | 6 

 
Member Azman agreed there should be a flyover but not conditioning the deer management 
program with the flyover. 
 
MOTION by Azman, seconded by Shuman, to authorize Administrator Kress to proceed to 
contract with the County to schedule an aerial survey as soon as possible in light of weather 
conditions.  Motion carried unanimously by roll call vote.  
 
10. COUNCIL MEMBER REPORTS  
Member Watson had no report. 
 
Member Shuman stated the next Safety Task Force meeting will be scheduled and publicly 
noticed. Those that signed the petition will be invited to attend. 
 
Mayor Wolter stated they have been meeting on the Master Infrastructure Plan. An interactive 
website is being created for North Oaks residents. She has been working with the City Planner 
for the Aging in Place Grant. They are working on a community event for those 50 years and 
older to provide input on what the older residents are looking for.  
 
Member Shah stated the Fire Board meeting was held in October. There is not enough support to 
move forward with a Fire District. The Holiday Home Tour is coming up November 17-18.  
 
Member Azman attended the Relief Association meeting for the Fire Department. The Cable 
Commission meeting was also attended. The Planning Commission met a couple of weeks ago to 
discuss some updates to the ordinances and the garage size for CUP is still being discussed. 
Noise ordinances were also discussed without having a way to measure decibels.   
 
11. CITY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS 
Administrator Kress stated the contractor that did the upstairs said he has some time this winter 
to finish the back wall of the Council chambers along with other updates. These modifications 
will be done in December. Member Shah requested the remainder of the Council be given the 
plans. 
 
12. CITY ATTORNEY REPORTS  
None. 
 
13. MISCELLANEOUS  
Trees were ordered for next year. 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT 
MOTION by Watson, seconded by Azman, to adjourn the meeting at 9:20 p.m. Motion 
carried unanimously by roll call. 
 
____________________________   _____________________________ 
Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Krista Wolter, Mayor  
 

23



Minutes of the City Council Meeting  November 9, 2023 

P a g e  | 7 

Date approved___________ 

 

24



North Oaks City Council 

Special Meeting Minutes 

North Oaks City Council Chambers 

November 30, 2023 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Wolter called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL 

Present: Mayor Krista Wolter, Councilor Sara Shah, Tom Watson, John Shuman.  

Absent: Councilor Mark Azman 

Staff Present: Administrator Kevin Kress, Attorney Bridget Nason 

A quorum was declared present.  

 

3. Discussion Item(s) 

3a. Discussion and possible action on switching legal firm to Kennedy and Graven Charted, 

including contract materials and amending annual appointment resolution. 

 

MOTION by Tom Watson, seconded by John Shuman, to approve Kennedy & Graven as 

City Attorney firm. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

MOTION by Tom Watson, seconded by Sara Shah, to appoint Bridget Nason of Kennedy 

and Graven as City Attorney. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

MOTION by Tom Watson, seconded by Sara Shah, to approve Resolution 2023-1501 to 

amend the resolution of 2023 City appointments. Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

3b.  Approval of Resolution for 2024 Liquor Licenses 

 

MOTION by Tom Watson, seconded by Sara Shah, to approve the 2024 Liquor Licenses. 

Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

13. MISCELLANEOUS  

None. 

 

14. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Tom Watson, seconded by Sara Shah, to adjourn the meeting at 6:03 p.m. 

Motion carried unanimously by roll call. 

 

 

____________________________   _____________________________ 

Kevin Kress, City Administrator  Krista Wolter, Mayor  

 

Date approved____________ 

 

25



PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT 

Deputy Matt 651-448-1890 

Matt.lassegard@co.ramsey.mn.us 

 

o  137 CALLS FOR SERVICE  

▪ NOTABLE  

• Thefts at Spring Farm Development. Three over TG weekend. 

• Porch Pirate on Cunningham 

• Catalytic Converter theft Incarnation Lutheran Church  

• Suspicious  

o Mentally ill person in van 

o Kidnapping on Ridge Road, unfounded. 

• 25 Alarm calls 8 of which were at Hill Farm Road 

• Possible road rage on Leaf Wing Drive.  

• 20 Traffic Stops 

 

o SAFETY AND SECURITY 

▪ Package theft season 

▪ Housing Watch information. Inform neighbors. Snow removal. 
▪ DO NOT CALL DEPUTY MATT FOR IMMEDIATE ISSUES.  

 

o OTHER  

▪ Block Captain informational meeting 6:30pm JANUARY 16th 

• 1425 Paul Kirkwold Drive in Arden Hills 

 

 

 

 

 

26



27



 

1 

 
 Kennedy & Graven 

Fifth Street Towers 

150 South Fifth Street, Suite 700 

Minneapolis, MN 55402 
 

  

 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  City Administrator, Mayor and City Council 

 

FROM: Bridget Nason, City Attorney 

   

DATE: December 5, 2023 

 

RE: Earned Sick and Safe Time Law 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Earned Sick and Safe Time Law 

Effective January 1, 2024, employers must provide paid earned sick and safe time (ESST) to 

eligible employees. To be eligible, an employee must work at least 80 hours a year for an employer 

in Minnesota and not be an independent contractor. This includes seasonal, temporary, and part-

time employees. The Minnesota Department of Labor recently clarified that elected officials are 

not considered employees under the ESST law.  

At a minimum, the City must provide each eligible employee with at least one hour of ESST for 

every 30 hours worked, up to 48 hours of accrued ESST a year.  Employers may also choose to 

“front load” ESST hours to employees at the beginning of each year, using either a 48-hour or 80-

hour front load option.  The 48-hour front load option requires a payout of unused leave at the end 

of a year and the 80-hour option does not require a payout. 

ESST can be used for traditional sick leave purposes, such as the employee’s own illness and 

preventative care, but employees may also use it for additional reasons, such as caring for a family 

member (as defined by the law), absences due to domestic abuse, sexual assault or stalking, and 

closure of the workplace or a family member’s school or care facility due to weather or a public 

emergency.   

Employers that have an existing PTO policy that meets or exceeds the requirements of the ESST 

law are not required to provide additional paid leave.  However, employers may choose to be more 

generous and provide additional leave. 

The City’s existing leave policy does not comply with the requirements of this new law. As a 

result, the City must take action by December 31st of this year to amend its existing personnel 

policy to comply with the new ESST requirements.  

28



 

2 

The City has several options regarding implementing this new law, and the Council must determine 

which option would work best for the City.  

Option 1 

Because the City may be more generous than the law requires, the City could decide to give 

employees a new bank of paid ESST leave, in addition to the PTO that employees already receive 

under City policy.  This option is shown on the attached Option 1. 

The City does have the ability to structure ESST leave in three different ways: 

• Option A:  Accrual method; no end-of-year payout required; carryover allowed.  

o One hour of ESST earned for every 30 hours worked. 

o Employees accrue up to 48 hours of ESST each year. 

o Employees can carry over unused ESST into the next year, but City can cap 

accrual at 80 hours. 

• Option B: “Front load” 48 hours; end-of-year payout required; no carryover. 

o City provides 48 hours (minimum) of ESST at the beginning of the year for 

immediate use. 

o Unused hours are paid out at the end of the year. 

o Employees do not carry over unused ESST into the next year. 

• Option C: “Front load” 80 hours; no end-of-year payout required; no carryover. 

o City provides 80 hours (minimum) of ESST at the beginning of the year for 

immediate use. 

For simplicity, both Option 1 and Option to are based off of Option A above; the Council has the 

ability to structure the City’s ESST leave policy under any of the options shown above.  

Option 2 

Alternatively, the City may incorporate ESST requirements into its existing PTO program. With 

this option, the ESST would essentially be a “subset” of PTO offered to employees who otherwise 

are ineligible for paid time off (personal leave) or who earn personal leave in less than amounts 

required by statute for earned sick and safe time leave. This option is shown on the attached Option 

B. 

Requested Council Action 

The Council is asked to consider the attached draft PTO/ESST policies and adopt an ESST policy 

which shall be incorporated into the City’s existing personnel policy as shown. It should be noted 

that in addition to the ESST changes, the Council is asked to approve additional revisions to the 

City’s’ personnel policy to reflect the recent designation of Junteenth as a state holiday. 

29



30



31



32



33



34



Payable in 2021 % increase Payable in 2022 % increase Payable in 2023

1,974,877            6.1% 2,051,403            3.9% 2,182,645            

16,784,732         7.7% 16,830,655         0.3% 18,931,965         

11.77% 12.19% 11.53%

35



% increase Payable in 2024 % increase

6.4% 2,476,679                  13.5%

12.5% 21,060,046                11.2%

11.76%

36



CITY OF NORTH OAKS 

RAMSEY COUNTY, MINNESOTA 

RESOLUTION NO. XXXX 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING FINAL 2023 TAX LEVY, COLLECTIBLE IN 2024 AND 

2024 FINAL BUDGET 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH OAKS ORDAINS AS 

FOLLOWS: 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of North Oaks, County of 

Ramsey, Minnesota, that the following sum of money is levied for the current year, 

collectible in 2024, upon the taxable property in the City of North Oaks, for the following 

purposes: 

 Total levy $2,476,679.00 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the North Oaks City Council does hereby adopt 

the 2024 Annual Budget as hereto attached in Appendix A of this Resolution. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City Administrator is authorized to 
implement COLA at 5% for all staff the first payroll in 2024. 

The City Clerk is hereby instructed to transmit a certified copy of this resolution 

to the County Auditor of Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

PASSED BY THE COUNCIL of the City of North Oaks this 14th day of 
December, 2023. 

APPROVED: 

_________________

Krista Wolter, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of a 

Resolution presented to and adopted by the City Council of the City of North Oaks on 
December 14, 2023. 

Attested: 

By:  ________________________________  
Kevin Kress 
Its: City Administrator 

37



38



39



40



41


	City Council Agenda
	Item 6b.   - Dec. 2023 Budget vs Actual Spreadsheets.pdf
	Item 6b.   - December 2023 Charts and Graphs.pdf
	Item 6b.   - December 2023 Check Register.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 11.09.2023 City Council.pdf
	Item 6c.   - 11.30.2023 Special City Council Minutes.pdf
	Item 7a. - December 2023 CouncilMeeting.pdf
	Item 8a.   - CLCA memo to CityNO Council cost share 6dec2023.pdf
	Item 9a.   - ESST_Memo_to_Council.pdf
	Item 9b.   - 2024 Budget Truth in Taxation Spreadsheets.pdf
	Item 9b.   - Copy of Property tax levy spreadsheet updated 12-11-23.pdf
	Item 9b.   - XXXX._Approving_Final_2023_24_Tax_Levy.pdf
	Item 13a.   - Mosquito Control District 2023 summary.pdf



